REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 15, 2007

The Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Kaua‘i was called to
order by the Council Chair at the Council Chambers, Historic County
Building, 4396 Rice Street, Room 201, Lihu‘e, Kaua‘i, on Thursday, March 15, 2007
at 11:44 a.m., after which the following members answered the call of the roll:

Honorable Tim Bynum

Honorable Jay Furfaro -
Honorable Shaylene Iseri-Carvalho
Honorable Ronald Kouchi

Honorable Mel Rapozo

Honorable JoAnn A. Yukimura

Honorable Bill “Kaipo” Asing, Council Chair

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Mr. Rapozo moved for approval of the agenda as circulated, seconded by
Mr. Furfaro, and unanimously carried.

MINUTES of the following meetings of the Council:

Regular Meeting of February 14, 2007
Mid-Month Meeting of February 28, 2007
Special Meeting of February 13, 2007
Special Meeting of February 26, 2007

Mr. Furfaro moved for approval of the minutes as circulated, seconded by
Ms. Iseri-Carvalho and unanimously carried.

Chair Asing: What I’d like to do is we’re going to make a change to the
agenda, and move to page six (6) of the agenda on Proposed Draft Bill No. 2203.
And the reason for it is we have lots of people here and if we don’t do it now you're
going to have to sit and listen to all the things you may not want to listen to and
take your valuable time, and then we’re going to take lunch, and you are going to
have to come back. So, with that Mr. Clerk, let’s take that item out of order please.

There being no objections, Proposed Draft Bill No. 2203 was taken out of order.
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Proposed Draft Bill No. 2203 — A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
CHAPTER 8, KAUAT COUNTY CODE 1987, RELATING TO THE
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE (Superstores):

Chair Asing: Thank you. Can I have a motion first please, before we do
anything?

Mr. Rapozo moved to approve Proposed Draft Bill No. 2203, seconded by
Ms. Iseri-Carvalho.

Chair Asing: Why don’t we do a motion to approve, schedule a public
hearing for first reading...schedule public hearing on April 25, and forward this to
the Planning Committee, and then we’ll have the amendment.

Mr. Rapozo moved for passage of Proposed Draft Bill No. 2203 on first
reading, that a public hearing thereon be scheduled for April 25, 2007 at the
Council Chambers at 1:30 p.m., and that it thereafter be referred to the Planning
Committee, seconded by Ms. Iseri-Carvalho.

Chair Asing: Okay, thank you. And I believe we have an amendment.
Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes Mr. Chair, do you intend that I make the amendment,
we pass it, and then open it for public hearing?

Chair Asing: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: I mean public comment?

Chair Asing: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so Mr. Chair, move to amend as circulated

(Attachment I), seconded by Ms. Iseri-Carvalho.
Chair Asing: Any discussion?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes Mr. Chair. I want to explain that this is the original
bill that was sent to the Planning Commission, and they...this bill came back to us
from the Planning Commission with three (3) other bills, which are very similar to
the bill that we sent down, with the exception that the bills did came from the
Planning Department and the Mayor...are three (3) separate bills and they don’t
have any purpose statement. So what I did was to try and consolidate basically all
of the bills from the three (3) bills into our one (1) bill by adding the prohibition in
the resort area, and then I did choose not to include the sunset provision. So
basically what we have is the bill we sent down, adding the resort area prohibition,
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and I think we’re pretty much the same with the exception of the lack of a sunset
clause.

Chair Asing: Thank you. With that, what I'd like to do now is open it
up to the public. Is there anyone in the public who wants to speak on this item?
There is a...yes?

Mr. Rapozo: We left it at the discussion. Did you want to vote on the
amendment prior?

Ms. Yukimura: We can.

Chair Asing: We can. Well we can go ahead...why don’t we do that?

I'm going to call the meeting back to order, and the motion on the floor now is to
amend as circulated with the explanation that was given by Councilmember
Yukimura. With that, any further discussion on the amendment?

The motion to amend as circulated (Attachment I) was then put and
unanimously carried.

Chair Asing: With that, the rules are now suspended, and we’re going
to have public testimony. With that, Glenn please?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended.

GLENN MICKENS: Thank you Kaipo. It appears that this 2203 is
pretty much connected with 13, 14, and 15. Is that true?

Chair Asing: Yes.
Mr. Furfaro: Yes.
Mr. Mickens: Okay, I'll read my testimony. You have a copy of it. As

the drum beat of these big box stores continues, let’s see if we can put some
semblance of common sense into this controversy. Number one (1), isn’t it true that
we, the people, determine whether or not these stores will make it here on Kaua‘i or
close their doors? Whether these corporations want their stores 10,000 square feet
or 100,000 square feet is really irrelevant. If public participation doesn’t happen,
these stores will fold. To think that limiting their size will help or hurt them is
ridiculous.

Two (2), from the all the dialogue I've heard, no one has said that these big
box stores have closed any doors of our small businesses. Again, the people will
determine if any business will make it, regardless of what that business has to offer.
That’s free enterprise.
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Three (3), and as I've said before, hasn’t the emergence of Costco on Kaua“
saved us citizens millions of dollars in gasoline revenue by forcing all gas stations to
lower their prices by 40 to 50 cents a gallon? Make no mistake about it, these oil
companies didn’t voluntarily lower their prices, competition helped to break up
their monopoly. And instead of worrying about the size of these stores, why not use
the same energy to go after big oil and find out why Hawai‘i in particular has been
and is being gouged at the pump?

Four (4), these big box stores, regardless of size are creating competition, and
thus putting money into the pockets of the consumers. No one worried about
Safeway, Foodland, Sears, or Ace when they came aboard, and to the best of my
knowledge, they have been big assets to everyone on this island. Small businesses
like Tanaka Store as I go there every once in a while, they’ll always be able to make
it, as they have items that no one else has, plus they have people working for them
are outstanding in serving their customers. I'm sure you've all been to Tanaka
Store, it’s a family run business and they are very good.

Let us go after the real culprits that are overbuilding Kaua‘i...the hotels, the
condos, the timeshares, and the huge land developers. For me, the only restriction I
would put on the permits issued to these big box stores is that if for any reason they
close their doors, then they will have money in a lock box to either be able to remove
that structure or even better to make it into a great recreation center to better the
youth of Kaua‘i. Any questions?

Chair Asing: Thank you Glenn. Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, I just want to make clear that at least my intention
is not to either hurt or help any store, or stop anybody from doing business. Like
we’re doing...we're just saying what we feel matches the character and preserves
the character of Kaua‘, just like we have restricted hotels to four (4) stories, we’re
just saying that certain sizes are not appropriate to Kaua‘i, nobody is stopping
anybody from doing business.

Mr. Mickens: But isn’t the area that they are building on, they've given
permits I presume to build the size of the stores...I mean it’s their property, and
they want to expand it, why are you against that?

Ms. Yukimura: I don’t know what propertyA you’re talking about.
Mr. Mickens: Well, take like K-Mart where...or Wal-Mart that they are

going to expand to a bigger size store, it’s their property. I presume they are going
to expand on that property aren’t they?
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Ms. Yukimura: Well, Wai‘ohai, all the hotel properties, they can’t go more
than four (4) stories, that’s all there is to it.

Mr. Mickens: Well I understand that, I agree with you on the four (4)
story limit, but when the store is on the ground level, I don’t see that it’s you know
making an eyesore, anything else out of the property.

H

Chair Asing: Okay, thank you.
Mr. Mickens: You’re welcome.
Chair Asing: Is there anyone in the public who wants to speak?

PETER NAKAMURA, COUNTY CLERK: Council Chair, we do have one (1)
registered speaker, Brian Halsey.

Chair Asing: Brian?
BRIAN HALSEY, MARKET MANAGER, WAL-MART: Hi, good afternoon.
Chair Asing: Good afternoon.

Mr. Halsey: I'm Brian Halsey, I'm the Market Manager over the
operations for Wal-Mart in Hawai‘l. I started with the company over 18 years ago
pushing shopping carts in Florida. I came over to Hawai‘i in the mid 1990s, helped
open the store in Hilo. I was actually a store manager at this store for several
years, so I have a lot into Kaua‘i. I also met my wife, and she’s born and raised on
Kaua‘i, has a lot of family, so you know it’s a beautiful island. Wal-Mart has been
on Kaua‘i for more than a decade, and we feel that we have been good to the
community. We have helped a lot of our customers and delivered a lot of good
products. We also have contributed tens of thousands of dollars each year to
different organizations, in grants and moneys, and we’re looking at continuing to be
more engaged and more out there in the community than what we were in the past.
As a market, we actually contribute over $700,000 statewide to Hawai, and
everybody thinks that we just donate to corporations that spend money on the
Mainland. We don’t, as far as the contributions side of it. We have over 375
associates at the store that are involved in all kinds of community events, and
activities.

In response to our customers, we've been planning to expand our store to a
supercenter. They’ve told us that they wanted us to add the grocery component.
We've been having this requested for years, and so that’s what we want to build to
deliver. We would bring a strong price of competition to the island and help keep
the prices low on groceries. There was also a national survey found Wal-Mart
grocery prices are typically 17 to 20 percent lower than other supermarkets where
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we do have supercenters. Much of our vendors to supply a supercenter would be
coming from Hawai‘i, and a lot probably from Kaua‘i too, such as seafood, produce.
We already have...we already do our other things like milk and bread, they are not
made on the Mainland and shipped over, it’s done here in Hawail. We actually
have over 480 Hawai‘i suppliers in the State that distribute, and we buy goods
from...approximately 40% of our merchandise, which is a little over $170 million a
year, and supports over 17,000 jobs in the State of Hawail We are the fifth largest
employer with over 4,300 associates counting Sam’s Club, and we do take care of
our associates, and we do have good benefit plans.

In addition to that, we have an awesome emergency operations center, and
we have an Hawai‘i contingency plan built with our local buying team and our local
vendors to help support disasters on any...each and every island. Also have support
from our 24 hour center on the Mainland, that if I need to fly goods, if I need to get
generators, if I need to do something, hopefully we won’t get to that point, but we
were challenged with that last year, and we were prepared to react to that. If we
have the grocery component, it adds on more items that I can get, that I can build
that plan even better, and I can distribute amongst the different islands if that were
to happen.

Chair Asing: Go ahead, continue.

Mr. Halsey: I'll make it quick. No...in one (1) sense, you could look at
this in a positive way. We're already on Kaua‘i, you're going to keep any other
competitor from coming here. We already have a good market share, so I mean if
we wanted to look at the positive side of it. We feel that banning this, this affect of
banning larger stores, larger than 75,000 square feet would hurt the Kaua‘i people
for years to come. When you protect businesses against new competition, it takes
away the incentive to become better, to source more merchandise and get better
items. And the proposals that you would ensure...these proposals would insure that
prices on Kaua‘i would remain higher than they need to be. Proponents say of this
ban say it is a planning issue. They claim it is similar to the long standing ban on
high rise buildings on Kaua'‘i, but a large low rise structure can be designed and
planned not to affect views and keep the Kaua‘ character, in which we have
submitted that. It has not been approved as far as permitting, that was done last
year, and it would make that box look like a beautiful store on the outside.

This is really about protecting a few selected businesses from competition,
and we urge you to reject these proposals. Thank you for your time.

Chair Asing: Thank you. With that, Councilmember Rapozo?

Mr. Rapozo: Thank you. Thanks Brian. What...how big is the gross
square footage of the current Wal-Mart?
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| Mr. Halsey: It is 19...right at 119, at little of 119,000 square feet.
i Mr. Rapozo: | And the proposed?
Mr. Halsey: It’s right at 200,000 square feet.
Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:I'm sorry, Councilman Rapozo is that in addition, or is
that the total?
Mr. Rapozo: No, well I’'m asking for total.
Mr. Halsey: That would be total box. After the expansion it would be
right at 200,000.
Mr. Rapozo: Completely, everything, gross square feet would be about
200,000?
Mr. Halsey: Yes sir.
Mr. Rapozo: Okay, thank you.
Chair Asing: Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, Mr. Halsey.

Mr. Halsey: Yes?

il

Ms. Yukimura: You say that a lot of the vendors are Hawai‘i based,
regarding, you mentioned examples of milk and bread.

Mr. Halsey: Um hum.
Ms. Yukimura: That is milk that’s actually produced in Hawai‘i?

Mr. Halsey: It’s from the milk vendor on O‘ahu, and it’s shipped to the
outer islands, yes.

Ms. Yukimura: But it’s not that...it’s not milk that is produced in Hawai‘i
right?

Mr. Haley: I’d have to get you the answer on that. I believe that it is
pasteurized on O‘ahu, some of it may be shipped in, yes.

Ms. Yukimura: I mean it doesn’t come from cows in Hawaii?
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Mr. Haley: I...actually on some of the islands I believe it does,
because we have been affected with milk before because they were not able to get
enough sourced.

Ms. Yukimura: Because they were not able to what?

Mr. Halsey: They were not able to get enough to supply the volume
needed. That has happened in the past.

Ms. Yukimura: You meén the local vendors were not able to.

Mr. Halsey: Right, so I would imagine that the amount of milk that is
brought into the State, that they do have some imported, I mean...

Ms. Yukimura: Um hum, um hum. And the bread is manufactured or
baked on O‘ahu?

Mr. Halsey: On Of‘ahu, and it is shipped...even our great value brand,
we've negotiated with the vendors to do our own bread for us.

Ms. Yukimura: And you’re saying even that is done in Hawai‘i?

Mr. Halsey: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, thank you.
Mr. Halsey: Some competitors freeze it and send it over.

Ms. Yukimura: Um hum. Okay, thank you.

Chair Asing: Councilmember Bynum?

Mr. Bynum: Yes, just...did you say 40% of the merchandise in the
store comes from Hawai4?

Mr. Halsey: Yes, it’s either sourced or distributed through vendors and
in Hawai‘i.

Mr. Bynum: Sourced or distributed.

Mr. Halsey: Yes sir. Some are distributors, some...a lot of them are

actually small vendors.

Mr. Bynum: What local distributors on Kaua‘i does Wal-Mart use?
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Mr. Halsey: We have...
Mr. Bynum: Okay, what local distributors?
Mr. Halsey: We have several, I don’t have the list with me right now,

but I know we work with Koa Trading, we work with a lot...several of the vendors,
the garden vendors. Obviously if we went supercenter, we’d be looking at...working
in trying to get produce and all sourced here. It makes sense to do and it’s the right
thing to do. That’s been a lot of our success in Hawai‘i, and it’s a misconception that
is throughout the Mainland. We do operate a lot differently than we do on the
Mainland, but that’s how we've been able to build our business. We've actually
helped our vendors grow, and they’ve added on jobs over the years.

Chair Asing: Anybody else?
Mr. Bynum: Yea, I'm done.
Chair Asing: Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Yes, I guess, would you able to provide that list of vendors
and the amount of percentages that you engage in their services?

Mr. Halsey: I believe I can. I need to check on the financial part if I
can release that.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Alright.
Mr. Halsey: I will get you that answer.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:That info...okay, thank you, that information will be
helpful. And you said that Wal-Mart provides 17 to 20 percent lower prices?

Mr. Halsey: There was a national survey that was done on
supercenters that went into markets, and when they did the survey, it was

approximately 17 to 20 percent lower than the other competitors.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:On, I guess, the question is, you mean overall as an
average price or I mean, product by product, I mean how was that survey done?

Mr. Halsey: I believe that was done product by product, and that’s
how they usually do.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Do you have a copy of that survey?

Mr. Halsey: We can get you a copy of that.
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Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Okay, so that and the list and then...

Mr. Halsey: I'm sorry, some of these points are also on our online
walmart.com.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Okay.

Mr. Halsey: And a lot of these numbers you can see on there too.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Well if you could provide that I don’t know...

Mr. Halsey: We'll provide it for you, that’s not a problem.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:If they are there or not, but that definitely would be
helpful, and then I think there was a statement made about...was that keep
competitors from coming here.

Mr. Halsey: Um hum.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:That this bill will keep competitors from coming here?
Isn’t that...and in what respect?

Mr. Halsey: Well I mean you wouldn’t be able to.. .you would not have
a Target coming in, you would not have...Kmart would not consider doing a super
Kmart. You have...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Is it because you're saying that it would not be feasible for
these competitors to build less than 75,000 square feet? Is that what you’re saying?

Mr. Halsey: In my opinion, I do not believe if they were just entering
the market, that they would want to do that.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Okay, but do you have like you know hard facts to support
that or is that just your assumption or...

Mr. Halsey: I havent seen any stores that were that size of those
competitors. I can’t answer to whether they would make that decision or not, and
maybe they would.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Okay, and are you saying that...I guess you're planning to
expand, what is that 81 if my math is right, right, 81,000 square feet?

Mr. Halsey: Approximately, yes.
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Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:So there’s that much of a difference between having one
(1) that’s 75,000 versus one (1) that’s 6,000 square feet more?
Mr. Halsey: Well yes, there’s a lot of components that would be cut out
if you cut it down. You would not be able to carry the selection and you have to
have the logistics built in for the food, refrigeration, and all that, so it’s not total

sale store space, part of that would be the operation part.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:But basically, you’re saying that it would not be feasible
for Wal-Mart to come in under 75 but it could do it at 81, it will do it at 81.

Mr. Halsey: As far as a separate component?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Yea.

Mr. Halsey: It’s always possible. I mean we have stores, we have
neighborhood markets and everything that we have at different sizes, and we've
had Wal-Mart stores at you know smaller sizes, 60,000 square feet, neighborhood
markets are anywhere from 40,000 to 70,000 square feet. '

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Okay.

* Mr. Halsey: They just have a very limited amount of product.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Okay, so basically, I mean that is a possibility, that Wal-

Mr. Halsey: Yes.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Still would be able to provide the kind of services that
you're saying that the people need or desire in a smaller amount of space?

Mr. Halsey: Yes.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Is that accurate? And then can you give me...I guess has

there been...you know we’re looking at impacts to the community with that size, I -

mean is there going to be any more significant impacts whether it’s you know
75,000 versus 81,000 square foot?

Mr. Halsey: ~ Asfar as what’s being proposed?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Yes.

Mr. Halsey: I don’t think that amount of footage is going to make a
difference on the proposal, 5,000 square feet or 6,000 square feet.
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Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Alright. Thank you.
Chair Asing: Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: Does Wal-Mart have any other store over 200,000 square
feet in the State of Hawai‘i?

Mr. Halsey: Not in the State of Hawai‘i. We do have our double story,
two (2) story building in Honolulu that has a Sam’s Club on top, they are both
approximately 145,000 square feet. So, if you added those together yes that would
be like 300,000 square feet.

Ms. Yukimura: So, why would you want to put a 200,000 square feet on
an island with a population at the most of 80,000 before you put a store on O‘ahu
where there’s a million people?

Mr. Halsey: Well, obviously we’d like to grow every where we can. We
have four (4) Wal-Mart stores there, and two (2) Sam’s Club now...

Ms. Yukimura: But what kind...

Mr. Halsey: Land, trying to find land and working logistics and all
that out is a lot to do with that.

Ms. Yukimura: But what kind of market are you going to have from
80,000 people?

Mr. Halsey: It will be very (inaudible) good.

Ms. Yukimura: It will be what?

Mr. Halsey: It would be very good for us.

Ms. Yukimura: Do you have a study showing that? .
Mr. Halsey: I can probably' get some.

Ms. Yukimura: I'd like to see that.

Mr. Halsey Because we're successful in those markets in the
Mainland.

Ms. Yukimura: I'd like to see that.




COUNCIL MEETING 13 | MARCH 15, 2007

Mr. Halsey: We'’re in a lot of the small towns.

Ms. Yukimura: Yea, but people can drive a lot farther to the small town
than they can to Kaua‘i, unless you have a conspiracy with the Superferry.

Mr. Kouchi: Well if it’s...] suppose...and it goes both ways, that the
ability to drive on the Mainland gives you a greater range of choices of where to
shop. The inability to drive contains the market, so you don’t have the leakage in
an area or a territory that you would have on the Mainland, and that’s why they
build them on the islands when...any of the neighbor islands do not fit the
traditional business plan of how they would site a store on the Mainland.

Ms. Yukimura: Well that means you are definitely taking from the
existing market.

Mr. Kouchi: That’s (inaudible).
Chair Asing: Okay, any other questions? Councilmember Furfaro?
Mr. Furfaro: Yes, I guess that also means with this captured market

that...and your first store, you clearly must have a business plan.

Mr. Halsey: Oh yes.
Mr. Furfaro: Okay.
Mr. Halsey: We have a lot and we've already been working...we

actually just recently, you probably saw in the paper or heard about it, we’re looking
at doing a...possibly doing a supercenter in Hilo.

Mr. Furfaro: I saw that article today, but I guess what Councilwoman
Yukimura was looking for is something that reflects for a community of 80,000, and
in that she includes the visitor census of about 18,000 a day, clearly an
understanding of what your market and your business plan would be, and what
components you would be adding. For example, are you talking about adding a
garage? Does the garage have a gasoline component? Does your gasoline find itself
in a marketplace at a more competitive price because you know it doesn’t have all
the additives in it? You know those type of things that Councilwoman Yukimura
mentioned statistically, and from your study would be most helpful if you could
share something with us along those lines.

And also as Councilwoman Iseri-Carvalho mentioned you know a definition of
vendor versus a wholesaler in Honolulu, you know who is passing something
through and you know the processing of merchandise and its warehousing issues for
us, because as we lose neighborhood stores, and I'll be very specific, whether it’s
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Kong Lung, the original Yukimura store, Yasuda, and so forth, we also lose
warehousing space on the island that helps us in disasters, that there is product on
the island. So, thank you Mr. Chair for the question, but I would think it would
benefit you to respond to Councilwoman Yukimura’s question about the marketing
specifics.

Mr. Halsey: I can give you some of those details.
Ms. Yukimura: Yea.
Chair Asing: Okay, with that, hang on, Councilmember Bynum?

Mr. Bynum: You mentioned that Wal-Mart (inaudible) would have an
impact on competitor’s decisions, yea, so you’re saying...

Mr. Halsey: I'm sorry.

Mr. Bynum: Well, earlier in your testimony you said if you expanded
your store, it would impact decisions of...potential decisions of competitors whether
to locate on Kaua‘i or expand on Kaua‘.

Mr. Halsey: No, I'm sorry, my comment to that was pertaining to the
bill, that it would actually...the bill would protect us from any other competitors
coming in, opening a larger store.

Mr. Bynum: I see, and so if we had...you mentioned the word was here
just captured market.

Mr. Halsey: Right.

Mr. Bynum: And that we're on an island or people aren’t going to drive
in you know to come here, so if you are selling much more product, that product is
going to come from someplace else right?

Mr. Halsey: Right, some of it would...yes.

Mr. Bynum: | _Sd \6the'1: s'tore‘;s are going to be selling less product,
presumably?

Mr. Halsey: Right.

Mr. Bynum: You know one (1) of my concerns is that we’re creating a

situation where for people to get access to goods, they have to drive to Lihu‘e, and so
you know I...a 75,000 square foot store is a pretty big store. I found out that
Safeway, or maybe our largest supermarket now is about 45,000 square feet, so you
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could have a store one and a half Safeways in essence, the size, under this bill if it
were to pass.

Mr. Halsey: Right.

Mr. Bynum: And I'm afraid that expansion of services in the outlying
parts of the island in Po‘ipli, and on the Northshore, where I think those residents
would like to have a better selection of product available that this would be a
disincentive for opening stores or expanding stores in those areas, and create more
traffic in the Lihu‘e...this becomes our only place, and a captured market to get that
variety of goods and so do you think it’s possible that if a supercenter opens in
Lihu‘e it will be less likely there will be an expansion of services in the outlying
communities?

Mr. Halsey: It could possibly, but in my opinion everybody is already
coming to Lihu‘e. You have Costco and that will not change. I mean that’s a point,
I mean even when I lived here, I...there were certain areas you shopped, but the
main business sector is in Lihu‘e, and people travel here to work anyways, so I don’t
feel, I mean, unless you build a very competitive market, store on the other parts of
the island, that it’s going to continue that way.

Mr. Bynum: I guess that’s my point, if you build a...if you build stores
on the other parts of the island, and have that variety of goods, they’ll be less need
to drive to Lihu‘e and...

Mr. Halsey: Which that would be nice, and...but if you pass this bill, it
would be a little bit difficult for us to do. We could do it, it’s not impossible, but the
thing is too for us to be effective and smart business, putting it under one (1)
building is better than having two (2) buildings with two (2) electric bills, the whole
controllable expense side of it, so it does make a lot more sense to put it in one (1),
and our customers do like a one (1) stop shopping.

Mr. Bynum: If your customers desire more grocery goods, is there
anything that precludes you from putting more grocery in your 119,000 square feet
that you have right now?

Mr. Halsey: Well, we're very limited on space as it is, it’s kind of tight
in there with all the merchandise selection we have. In addition to that, if we were
able to expand our store, we would be able to expand the parking, which is a
definite need, because there are a lot of times the parking lot is just completely full.

Mr. Bynum: That’s it.

Mr. Halsey: Going back...did you want me to answer some of his
questions real quick?
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Chair Asing: Go ahead, go ahead.

Mr. Halsey: As far as distribution, yes, on the outer islands it is very
difficult getting warehouse space. I wish it was a lot easier, that is a big business.
We actually have a consolidator, we consolidate merchandise from our local vendors
on O‘ahu, and this helps, because what they do is they make one (1) delivery instead
of...to every Wal-Mart store over there, and have to ship it separately on Young
Brothers, which creates more logistical problems for them. So we consolidate that
and we send it over, so we house a lot of it on O‘ahu. Obviously we would want to
have a good enough receiving here that we could house more, but that’s the whole
key of us sourcing local vendors. If we did not have those 484 vendors, I'd have to
have, we’d have to have a lot bigger warehouses, because of the shipping time. Plus
we wouldn’t be able to get the selection of merchandise that the people want here
locally.

Chair Asing: Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, I want to retract and apologize for my comment
about the Superferry. It wasn’t really related and was rather flippant, although it’s
part of the siege that people feel we’re under in terms of the rapidly changing
landscape of the island. My question and actually, you know even my question
about feasibility, I think this bill is not saying...like I said, you can’t do business
here, it’s just saying do business on our terms, which is not gigantic buildings, not
centralized, and I mean some centralization we've allowed, but you know it’s like
people saying okay McDonalds you can come in but do it on our terms, where they
have put in design restrictions, height limits, whatever, and I think that is basically
what this bill is trying to say. The rural character of Kaua‘i is one (1) of the
primary goals of the General Plan, and that’s what we’re tying to do.

Mr. Halsey: And you know we are very compassionate to that. I think
you know the Mayor has his best interest of his people trying to protect the
character of Kaua‘i. I love Kauaf, it’s a beautiful island, it’s my favorite island.
Actually when you look at beautiful islands, and we operate on all the islands, I
travel all the islands, I think the right intentions are there, but in the same
instance we can come together and we can work with planning and develop a
beautiful looking store that will in addition have skylights that will cut down on
electricity. We will have additional sustainability things that we can put in place,
and it won’t be just a box, but we can come to doing that without passing legislation.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, the whole nature of big box stores is not very
sustainable when it’s bringing food products 15, you know 1500, 2000 miles on
cheap oil that’s not going to be around for very long. So, you know it sort of is
contrary to the idea of sustainability in my opinion, and I'm...I mean one (1) of the
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things I think Kaua‘i speaks to is that small is beautiful, and that’s one (1) of the
things...it’s a small place, it’s a small island.

Mr. Halsey: We have a firm commitment to being...we're one (1) of the
largest retailers obviously in the world, and we are committed to being in the future
the most sustainable. And we do everything, we do so many things and I'd be glad
to have individual conversations too if you’d like to give you more details about just
how we operate. I mean we want to continue being your neighbor, we want to do
the right thing.

Ms. Yukimura: And we'’re not doing anything to stop that.
Mr. Halsey: I know.

Ms. Yukimura: We're not.

Mr. Halsey: But we're...
Ms. Yukimura: And we appreciate what you have right now.
Mr. Halsey: I wish (inaudible).

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you.

Chair Asing: Is there any other questions for Brian? Councilmember
Furfaro?
Mr. Furfaro: Thank you. You know I think Councilwoman Yukimura

brings up a couple of other points and I'd really like to see more on issues that you
talk about relating to the store needing to be expanded from a standpoint of the
economic operational benefits that you talk about, because quite frankly, your store,
any hotel, I mean they can all be retrofitted for energy components.

Mr. Halsey: Right.

Mr. Furfaro: You know in 1985 when they argued that the Wai‘ohai
should be an eight (8) story exception to the height limit, the reality is whether the
maid is on the second floor, or the eighth floor, the housekeeper, the staff is still
allocated 16 rooms a day to do. You know the labor costs is the same, it
doesn’t...regardless of what floor they are on, but the intent again, was to you know
really enhance the destination so it made it attractive for visitors, and therefore
these limits. So you would have to make for me a very strong case on some of the
economic benefits related to the expansion, but I think it would also be important
for us to see some of your summaries of benefits that you talk about in your store, if
it’s not proprietor reserved, we’'d certainly like to know about average wage, you
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know medical plan, dental insurance, all of those particular things. It would be
quite helpful, rather than just planting these little seeds about economic benefit,
we’d like to see some statistical things, at least I would. Thank you.

Mr. Halsey: I can get that. We actually have Hawai‘i fact sheets that I
can actually submit too, in addition to the survey. And you know just one (1) quick
thing, and we can talk more about the economic situation, but just the trucking and
shipping alone to two (2) stores is a lot, and you’re creating more traffic.

Mr. Furfaro: No, I think you misinterpreted my earlier question. I
think right now with your distribution system, where you know you could take
advantage of central warehousing in Honolulu and periodic shipments here, for us,
with the neighborhood stores, they currently have warehousing that we need in the
event that we have an emergency. Whether it is a hurricane, heaven forbid, a
tsunami, you know we need to respond and respond to our people now with
resources on island. If we lose warehouse space, fact of the matter is we may
have...we may not have those goods and services, because we’ll have to wait for
something to be barged in from Honolulu, that was my point. But I would like to
see some of the other economic pieces, I really would appreciate that, because at the
end of the day it is also about the benefit to the citizens of Kaua‘i and how we

measure those, and what we also want to preserve. So, thank you. Thank you
Mr. Chair.

Chair Asing: Thank you. Councilmembers, any other questions for
Brian? If not Brian thank you very much, and Brian could we have a copy of your
testimony?

Mr. Halsey: Yes sir, we're going to submit a written copy.

Chair Asing: Okay, great, thank you very much.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you.

Chair Asing: Is there anyone else who wants to speak on this item?

_ KEN TAYLOR:  Chairman, members of the Commission, my name is Ken
Taylor. One (1) of the issues here, and first of all let me say that I'm in support of
this amendment, although I think the square footage is too large. I would like to
say that one (1) of the problems that we have with big box in general is that here on
the island you have a certain amount of discretionary income that’s available to be
spent, any place. And every time you dilute that income, it has effects on other
businesses, and we’re not...we’re growing probably faster than we should, but we
still aren’t growing fast enough to continue to support the kind of big box that’s
been coming along. And so the problem is, and one (1) of the issues that you really
have to take a good look at is that some of the existing businesses out here, they
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may only have to lose 5 to 20 percent of their existing, their existing business to put
them out of business. I mean it’s...it can be a very small margin, and that’s one (1)
of the problems and people say well, if I go and spend the bulk of my spending
money, spendable money at Wal-Mart for instance or Costco or wherever, and then
only go and spend pennies at my local market because I need to pick up a little
something here or there, they are not going to be there when I really need them.
And the problem is, and this has been proven across the country is that when big
box start to dominate communities, then businesses start to disappear, and it’s
documented all over the country. What happens then, the big box start to raise
their prices, and so there has not been any benefit. The other part of this equation
is that because you got a one (1) stop shop, people have to drive, and yet the
community is not...if the people in Princeville have to drive to Lihu‘e to do their
shopping because they can save 15% or 20%. What about the cost to the community
and policing the extra traffic, the traffic itself, the infrastructure that’s needed
that’s not being covered in all of this activity? So I think those things have to be
looked at very carefully, and I...so, as I say I’'m in support of this bill, and do feel
that the square footage is entirely too large, but I'd like to take a moment and say
that...

Chair Asing: Go ahead, continue.

Mr. Taylor: If by any chance you feel that you don’t want to be
supportive of this, I would suggest that you do some reading and one (1) would be
how superstores sprawl can harm communities and this is from the National Trust
of Historic Preservation. There’s another document, this was testimony of
superstores on small businesses that was given to the House of Representatives.
There’s another document, the Shields Report measuring the economic and
sociological impacts of mega retail discount chains in small enterprise in urban,
suburban, and rural communities, and most recently the Big Box Swindle. Now, if
there’s any doubt in your mind that you don’t want to support this bill, please do
some reading from these documents and educate yourselves on what these things
have done to communities all over the country. It’s sad to see and it’s spreading
out, I mean we have documentation from the Philippines of what these companies
are doing to these people in the sweatshops and in China, and in South Africa, it’s
all over. They are taking advantage of people and it’s all encompassing why they
can sell cheap, because they have destroyed other peoples lives, and I think that’s
wrong. I hope that you’ll support this bill, and I'll have more on it later, thank you.

Chair Asing: Thank you. Any questions? If not I...no questions?
Could you make available those books and articles to the Council? All we need is
the title, yes, the title pages, yes and then we can get the information with the
titles. Thank you very much. Is there anyone else who wants to speak on this
item? No one else?

The meeting was called back to order and proceeded as follows:
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We have a motion on the floor now for approval first reading, schedule public
hearing on the 25t of April, and refer to the Planning Committee. With that, any
further discussion? If not, all those in favor say aye? Motion carried. Oh, I'm sorry,
roll call.

The motion was then put and carried by the following vote:

FOR PASSAGE: Bynum, Furfaro, Iseri-Carvalho, Kouchi,
Rapozo, Yukimura, Asing TOTAL -7,
AGAINST PASSAGE: None TOTAL - 0,
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL - 0.
Chair Asing: Thank you. What I'd like to do, we’re going to take a

lunch break now, and Mr. Clerk, can we come back at 1:30 p.m.? Okay, we’ll be
back at 1:30 p.m. to continue the meeting, and we are scheduled for public hearing I
believe at 2:00 p.m., 1:30 p.m. Thank you.

The Chair called a lunch recess and public hearing recess at 12:28 p.m.
The meeting was called back to order at 1:39 p-m. and proceeded as follows:

(Change to side B of tape 1)

COMMUNICATIONS:

C 2007-132 Communication (Q2/21/2007) from the Planning Director,
transmitting the Planning Commission’s recommendation to amend Chapter 8,
Kaua‘l County Code 1987, as amended, relating to: ‘

1. Limitation the gross floor area of single retail and wholesale establishments
to 75,000 square feet within the Resort District, Commercial District, and
Industrial District, (Request of the Honorable Mayor Bryan Baptiste)

2. Recommending denial of Zoning Amendment ZA-2007-7 to minimize the
duplication and redundancy of amendments proposed in the aforementioned
bills. (Request of the County Council):

Mr. Rapozo moved to receive C 2007-132 for the record, seconded by
Ms. Iseri-Carvalho and unanimously carried.

C 2007-133 Communication (03/08/2007) from Councilmember Shaylene
Iseri-Carvalho, transmitting a bill that extends the vending concession terms at the
Spouting Horn to June 30, 2012 and increases the dollar amounts in the penalty
section: Mr. Rapozo moved to receive C 2007-133 for the record, seconded by
Ms. Iseri-Carvalho and unanimously carried.
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C 2007-134 Communication (02/28/2007) from the Executive on Housing,
transmitting for Council review and approval, a resolution authorizing the filing of
the 2007 Action Plan for the County’s 5-Year Consolidated Plan to the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and to appropriate funding
for 2007 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) projects: Mr. Rapozo
moved to receive C 2007-134 for the record, seconded by Ms. Iseri-Carvalho and
unanimously carried.

C 2007-135 Communication (02/28/2007) from the Executive on Housing,
transmitting for Council review and approval, a resolution authorizing the filing of
the 2007 Action Plan for the County’s 5-Year Consolidated Plan to the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and to appropriate funding
for 2007 HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) projects: Mr. Rapozo
moved to receive C 2007-135 for the record, seconded by Ms. Iseri-Carvalho and
unanimously carried.

C 2007-136 Communication (02/20/2007) from the Acting Manager and
Chief Engineer, Department of Water, transmitting for Council information the
Department of Water’s quarterly financial reports as of December 31, 2006:
Mr. Rapozo moved to receive C 2007-136 for the record, seconded by Ms. Iseri-
Carvalho and unanimously carried.

C 2007-137 Communication (02/28/2007) from the Director of Finance,
transmitting for Council information, Financial Reports--Month Ending January 31,
2007: Mr. Rapozo moved to receive C 2007-137 for the record, seconded by
Ms. Iseri-Carvalho and unanimously carried.

C 2007-138 Communication (02/21/2007) from the Chief, Building Division,
Department of Public Works, requesting Council approval to purchase personal
protection equipment, computers (2), and office furniture for two (2) contract hires
assigned to do sign ordinance enforcement and code inspection assistance, and
building permit clerical work, for approximately $8,300.00 using funds from the

Building Permit Revolving Fund:

Chair Asing: I believe Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho you wanted
Public Works here?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Yes.

Chair Asing: 'Peter, is Donald available now?

Mr. Nakamura: I understood that we are trying to contact Mr. Fujimoto.
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Chair Asing: Why don’t we move this to a later time when the Engineer
is here. ' '

Mr. Nakamura:  So noted Mr. Chair.
Chair Asing: Next item please?

C 2007-139 Communication (02/28/2007) from the Mayor, transmitting for
Council confirmation, his appointment of Jonathan Chun, 1st Term, to the County of
Kaua‘i Charter Commission:

C 2007-140 Communication (02/28/2007) from the Mayor, transmitting for
Council confirmation, his appointment of John D. Constantino, 1st Term, to the
County of Kaua‘l Charter Commission:

C 2007-141 Communication (02/28/2007) from the Mayor, transmitting for
Council confirmation, his appointment of Walter Briant, 1st Term, to the County of
Kaua‘i Charter Commission:

C 2007-142 Communication (03/06/2007) from the Mayor, transmitting for
Council confirmation, his appointment of Leland K. Kahawai, Partial Term, to the
County of Kaua‘i Board of Water Supply:

Mr. Furfaro moved to receive C 2007-139, C 2007-140, C 2007-141, and
C 2007-142 for the record, schedule interviews with resolutions to follow, seconded
by Mr. Kouchi and unanimously carried.

C 2007-143 Communication (03/06/2007) from the Executive on Housing,
transmitting for Council review and approval, an amendment to the County’s
Leasehold Sales Program policy adopted by the Council on September 8, 2005. The
major changes to the leasehold sales policy are:

1. Extending the lease term from 55 years to 99 years,

2. Having the leasehold sales price be the same as its appraised value of the
capital improvements,

3. Changing a periodic (quarterly) ground rent fee instead of total payment in
advance at purchase, and

4. Changing the lessee’s appreciation from a set interest rate to the actual
change in value of the improvements:

Mr. Furfaro moved to approve C 2007-143, seconded by Ms. Iseri-Carvalho.

Chair Asing: Is there any discussion? I believe Ken was going to be
here to explain the program. I kind of wanted an idea as to what the program
entails in its entirety, in that we’re moving from a 55 year lease period to a 99 year
period, so let’s hold this until Ken gets here.
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Mr. Furfaro: Yea, I do think this...he implied this was time sensitive as
well so...
Chair Asing: Yes, but he will be here. He was here this morning.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Right, he waited all this morning.

Mr. Furfaro: Okay.
Chair Asing: Okay, so we'll wait until he gets here. Take the next item
please?

Mr. Nakamura: So noted Mr. Chair.

C 2007-144 Communication (03/08/2007) from the Mayor, requesting
Council confirmation of Matthew S.K. Pyun, Sr., Esq. to serve as County Attorney
for the County of Kaua‘i: Ms. Iseri-Carvalho moved to approve C 2007-144,
seconded by Mr. Furfaro.

Chair Asing: Any discussion? Go ahead.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes Mr. Chair, by approving this, we will be approving
Mr. Pyun right?

Chair Asing: Yes, there is no resolution required.
Ms. Yukimura: Judge Pyun, excuse me.
Chair Asing: For this position.’

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Chair Asing: Any? Yes, go ahead.

Ms. Yukimura: Yea, so I do have a comment. I'm very thankful that we
finally have an appointee to the County Attorney position. I'm very thankful to
Judge Pyun for accepting this position, and I look forward to getting to our work

now that we will have some clear working relationship and clear guidance.

Chair Asing: Yes, go ahead Councilmember Furfaro?

Mr. Furfaro: Yes, I also would like to acknowledge we’re approving
this, we are acknowledging a new County Attorney. I would like to also point out
that how very pleased I am with a gentleman, the type of seniority with the courts,
and his ability to serve and mentoring as well as a possibility of bringing




COUNCIL MEETING 24 MARCH 15, 2007

prospective attorneys into the county. I'm very pleaséd with him. I think we are
quite fortunate.

Chair Asing: Thank you. Any further discussion? Councilmember
Iseri-Carvalho?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:I would also like to echo those sentiments. I also am very
pleased that the County Attorney Matthew Pyun, after approval, has agreed to be
present at all of our Council and Committee meetings. That will definitely assist us
in making our decisions as expeditiously as possible for the betterment of the
community.

Chair Asing: Yes, go ahead. Councilmember Rapozo?

Mr. Rapozo: Thank you Mr. Chair. I know the public was not able to
witness the interview process, but there were some very heavy duty questions from
members of the Council, and I'm...personally I'm impressed with his resume and
his answers today were, you know were good answers. And I think that he brings a
lot of leadership and am looking forward to Judge Pyun, he’s still a judge, and he
will become I guess County Attorney next week I would assume. I'm not sure how
that works, but we’re looking forward to his leadership and his management style,
which I think was quite impressive, and we’re looking for some positive change in
that area. So I will be supporting this. Thank you.

Chair Asing: Thank you. Any further discussion?
The motion to approve C 2007-144 was then put, and unanimously carried.
There being no objections C 2007-138 was taken out of order.

C 2007-138 Communication (02/21/2007) from the Chief, Building Division,
Department of Public Works, requesting Council approval to purchase personal
protection equipment, computers (2), and office furniture for two (2) contract hires
assigned to do sign ordinance enforcement and code inspection assistance, and
building permit clerical work, for approximately $8,300.00 using funds from the
Building Permit Revolving Fund: . '

Chair Asing: Thank you. We have Doug here, so I'd like to suspend the
rules. Doug please?

DOUG HAIGH, BUILDING EDIVISION, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
WORKS: Good afternoon, Doug Haigh, Department of Public Works.

Chair Asing: Good afternoon Doug. Doug, maybe why don’t you go,

-give us some background and more for the public to know exactly what this is.
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Mr. Haigh: We have a building permit revolving fund, which is
established to assist us in responding to surges in building permit activity. And
over the last year or so at least, we've been seeing this surge in that activity. We
came to Council last fall asking approval to add two (2) additional positions to be
hired under the revolving fund, because really we'’re looking for help in our building
permit clerk area, and also in a sign ordinance inspector and assistant building
inspector position. So we’re looking at hiring two (2) people in those positions, and
in order for them to do their job, they need to have their personal protection
equipment, computer, office equipment, so that’s where...coming back for approval
to spend funds out of the revolving fund, a special fund established for this reason,
to assist us in managing this surge in construction building permit activity.

Chair Asing: Thank you. Any questions Councilmembers?
Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Yes, Doug I guess these two (2) staff members will be
housed in what division?

Mr. Haigh: They’ll be in the building division.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:So we have the necessary space, it’'s just basically
providing for the materials in that space?

Mr. Haigh: That is correct. We did a remodel several months ago. I
don’t know if you’ve been in the building division recently, but near where our
Senior Clerk is, we created room there to add one (1) position there, and then the
other position we have a space back with the building inspectors.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Have we filled these positions yet?
Mr. Haigh: No we have not.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:And so have the posting gone out or...where are we at?
What is the status of filling these positions?

Mr. Haigh: Well we temporarily suspended that, because the County
Engineer was sensitive to Council’s concerns about our building permit report, and
my understanding at that Council meeting when this building permit report issues
were first discussed, he informally told you that he would hold off on filing those
positions until we resolved the report issues.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Um hum.
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Mr. Haigh: We are almost done on resolving the report issues, of
course we’ve had to spend considerable staff time, we spent over 200 overtime hours
of staff time to fix this report issue, and we see continual work on that, so actually
the clerk that we're hiring, a good part of their work, once we get them trained will
be to help us through this transition period and correcting past data that needs to
be correct in order to give current reports that are accurate. So, he just gave
Crystal, the Public Works personnel officer, the nod to go ahead and start working
on filling those positions. Informally, my staff has been asking around seeing if
they can find somebody qualified. It’s a civil...in order to get hired under the
position you have to go through the civil service process, so...and there may be...I
don’t know.. I don’t think...I think there is an exam required for the clerk, that they
have to take an exam and they have to get on the list, so it doesn’t happen
overnight.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:These are contract positions though right?

Mr. Haigh: They are contract positions, but the way the ordinance is,
they have to still go through the process.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Okay, and then the question I had here on the actual
expenditure, line item number seven (7) for the sign inspector, one (1) electronic
typewriter for $830, and that seems kind of excessive for a typewriter number one
(1), but number two (2) it also seems what would be the need to have that
typewriter when you have two (2) computers at $1,800.00 each, so $3,600.00 for the
computers?

Mr. Haigh: Our code enforcement officer prepared the list, and I don’t
know the exact details. I knew, I do know that they still have to hand type some
forms, because they aren’t computer generated, so...and I believe some of our...we
don’t have extra typewriters, some had died recently. So we need to have a
typewriter for the position.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Well...

Mr. Haigh: As far as the price of the typewriter, my understanding is
we go to the latest value of what Purchasing has been buying them at. I can get
back to you on that specific item. I don’t know the exact details on that.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Okay, well...
Mr. Haigh: Justifying the pricé.
Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Just that item I have a problem with, you know I think in

the County we should, I mean even I think even here, we have a typewriter that is
not being used, so if you guys need a typewriter, you know I think...I've checked
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with staff and they have one (1) here, so I mean I think that’s kind of excessive to be
spending on a typewriter, $800, I mean you can get a computer for that price with
memory and all of that.

Mr. Haigh: If Council Services has a typewriter they are not using,
we’d be more than happy to get it.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Or somebody else, but I mean...it’s just a lot of money I
think in this day and age with the electronics being the way it is, and how the costs
have come down for one (1) typewriter to cost $830.

Chair Asing: Okay, any further questions Councilmembers? Yes,
Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: The sign inspector...well first of all, both these positions
are contract so if the volume of work goes down, and we don’t need them, then they
will no longer be working for the County?

Mr. Haigh: If the volume goes down, and funds are not available,
then we need to start laying off. Because these positions are funded by the
revolving fund, so we have no choice, unless we come back to Council and try to
make it a permanent position.

Ms. Yukimura: Right, and that would be another point of decisionmaking.
The sign inspector, you're...is that how it’s worded so that that person would just be
inspecting signs?

Mr. Haigh: No, that is, not exactly. Currently, our building
inspectors are the personnel available to do sign inspections. We acknowledge that
there’s...there are certain violations to the sign ordinance out there, and we would
like to do a better job in enforcing the sign ordinance. But at the same time, we'’re
at a very busy time for our building inspectors, so by and what our code
enforcement officer coordinator, what his vision is is to do an assistant building
inspector sign ordinance so that one (1)...and I put in there I want them to be able
to do clerical work too, because we have a huge load in clerical, so in the job
description, we actually...I had them specifically add general clerical work, so they
would be doing general clerical work, sign ordinance work, and then also could be
assistant building inspector work, because especially in the summer time, when a
lot of our inspectors take vacation. What happens is supervisors end up having to
do inspections and then we lose our plan review time, and it kind of...and so by
having an assistant there, it should help us.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, that sounds good. I'm mainly concerned that the
position is flexible enough so they are not just...you’re not stuck having them doing
just one (1) thing, because I'm aware of the multiple needs of your division.
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Mr. Haigh: And we share your same concern and are structuring as
such.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, very good, thank you.

Mr. Furfaro: May I ask a question?
Chair Asing: Yes, go ahead.
Mr. Furfaro: You know I just want to remind all of us Doug, and this is

one (1) of the challenges we have in providing you funds for a quick response and
needs when you have them. You know the revolving fund can be up to $100,000 for
the use of activating temporary personnel to meet your needs so that you have that
kind of autonomy. The trust factor comes in is if you see yourself continuing to use
those people for a long period of time, we would hope that you would come forward
and say there is a need to convert these as regular positions, because you'll never
run out of money in that fund. That fund is constantly replenished and you know
that’s the good news/bad news, but we depend on you to be able to manage your
staffing based on having that fund when you have to do a quick response to having
more people at the counter, or something of that nature. So may I please ask you to
just be sensitive to that, and if we visit this in six (6) months and you still have that
need, then you ought to be considering the need to have permanent staff.

Mr. Haigh: | Thank you. ., : -, :_r - .

Mr. Furfaro: Thank you.

Chair Asing: Go e{hé%d,: ,Councilmembér Rapozo?

Mr. Rapozo: Doug, how lor’1g ére these contracts for, these employment
contracts?

Mr. Haigh: I'm not sure, I'm not involved in writing up the contracts.

Probably six (6) months to/or a year contract, but I'm not sure. I'd have to get back
to you on that.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, and how long do you anticipate needing the
sign...you know I think we spoke the other day that there’s quite a bit of violations
out there right now. Has...have you figured out about how long you are going to
need the sign inspector to catch up to basically do the first wave of enforcement,
and...
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Mr. Haigh: The position with the job description we’re using, I'm
seeing we’ll probably have at least a year with the current backlog of work we need
to do, at least a year.

Mr. Rapozo: And that is...

Mr. Haigh: For both positions.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, and because I heard earlier that this sign person
may be doing other things.

Mr. Haigh: Correct, but their first focus is going to be the sign
ordinance.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, because that’s my concern right now.

Mr. Haigh: We have a commitment, we were hoping in January to

start actively pursuing that, but of course we haven’t been able to.

Mr. Rapozo: So for the public watching, because you know we get all
the emails and the calls, and then you get it right after that, so when can the
public...well obviously we got to hire the person first, but am I hearing that this
person will be assigned to the sign duty immediately and we’re going to focus on
that first or you are going to use the sign guy to take up backlog of clerical duties?
Because I'm approving this based on the fact that I'm expecting the sign issues to be
cleared up relatively soon.

Mr. Haigh: My goal is to assign him to the sign, because I'm really
the one (1) in the division who ends up picking up most of the issues on the
complaint driven sign ordinance issues.

Mr. Rapozo: Right.

Mr. Haigh: So, I'm...it’s to my benefit to get them on them on the sign
right away, and that’s our commitment, and I believe...my understanding with the
Administration that is their commitment also, is to have them work on the sign
ordinance right away is one (1) of the priorities.

Mr. Rapozo: Well I remember the press release where the Mayor was
going to be going gung ho for the sign violations, and that hasn’t happened yet, so I
would like to see this happen, because there is...I mean there’s just tons of
violations out there, and so okay. Thank you.

Mr. Haigh: I'm just hopeful that we’ll be able to find somebody
qualified, ready, willing, and able to start on the position as soon as possible.
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Chair Asing: Thank you. Any further questions? Councilmember
Bynum? -
Mr. Bynum: Well Doug, just regarding the sign ordinance, I...you

know I was at a Kapa‘a Business Association meeting where the signs were being
discussed, and there was concern from businesspeople about the proliferation of
signs, but also a desire that the enforcement occur uniformly. Because part of what
proliferates it is well, my competitor put up a sign, I need to be competitive and so
they’re (I think) prepared, or at least the businessmen who were at the association,
for a sign ordinance to be enforced, but they want to see it happen you know
consistently and across the board. So I applaud efforts to...and it makes sense for
our credibility to get it done in a way that...you know in sense that it’s fair. Well I
had to remove my sign, but so did everybody else on the block kind of thing, so
thanks for your commitment to that.

Chair Asing: Okay, any further discussion Councilmembers? No? If
not, I'm going to say Doug that you’re not going to purchase item number seven,
which is the $830 for the typewriter.

Mr. Haigh:  If there isn’t one (1) available, and we really need one (1),
how would you suggest I would proceed at that time?

Chair Asing: 1 would ‘sﬁggest that you come back.

Mr. Haigh: Resubmit? Okay, I have no problem with that.

Chair Asing: Just resubmit, I think it will be plain that way.

Mr. Haigh: Okay, I have no problem with that. Thank you very
much.

Chair Asing: Okay, any further...I’'m sorry, anyone else in the audience

who wants to speak on this item?
The meeting was called back to order and proceeded as follows:
Chair Asing: And the motion on the floor is to approve.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho moved to approve C 2007-138...is that theh the amount of
$7,470?

Chair Asing: Yes.

Mr. Rapozo seconded the motion.
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Chair Asing: Any further discussion?

The motion to approve C 2007-138, less $830 for the typewriter was then put
and unanimously carried.

There being no objections C 2007-143 was taken out of order.

C 2007-143 Communication (03/06/2007) from the Executive on Housing,
transmitting for Council review and approval, an amendment to the County’s
Leasehold Sales Program policy adopted by the Council on September 8, 2005. The
major changes to the leasehold sales policy are:

1. Extending the lease term from 55 years to 99 years,

2. Having the leasehold sales price be the same as its appraised value of the
capital improvements,

3. Changing a periodic (quarterly) ground rent fee instead of total payment in
advance at purchase, and

4. Changing the lessee’s appreciation from a set interest rate to the actual
change in value of the improvements:

Chair Asing: Thank you. With that, I'd like to suspend the rules. Ken
please? ‘

There being no objections, the rules were suspended.

KEN RAINFORTH, EXECUTIVE ON HOUSING: I'm Ken Rainforth,
Executive on Housing.

Chair Asing: Ken, why don’t you go ahead and just explain in full detail
on what you are asking for and your rationale behind it.

Mr. Rainforth: Okay, thank you for the opportunity. I believe about a
year and a half ago the County Council adopted our proposed leasehold estate
program, and we propose to implement it on all properties that the County bought
back to its repurchase restriction. And we have probably five (5) or six (6)
properties that we have obtained your approval to resell with the leasehold concept.
We haven’t done that however, because soon after the County Council approved our
leasehold program, we attended a workshop in Honolulu and part of the sessions
that I went to dealt with leasehold and a land trust. And I learned that what we
proposed and had the Council approved were okay, but that we could do a better
job. So what I myself and my staff have been doing is developing a better leasehold
program and drafting a leasehold document to have lenders review and something
that we want now to implement. And so we're asking you to amend the proposal
that we had you approve a year and a half ago.
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So the...there’s four (4) specific areas that comprise the principle differences
from the approved policy and what we’re proposing now. The first one (1) is to
change the lease term from 55 years to 99 years. In the workshop that we went to,
we were advised to have the longest term as we could possibly have and the
standard is that you shouldn’t go past 99 years, so we’re proposing that it be a 99
year lease. Anybody who has a leasehold estate can have it extended and then
lessees can also pass down the property to an heir.

The second change is the sales price that the County would sell the leasehold
estate for. Originally we were...I have to apologize, I've always been focused on how
we deal with buyback properties, and so when I wrote the proposed leasehold policy,
I was influenced by my experience. Since then, I understand that in...for a
leasehold you are really only selling the improvements, so you shouldn’t charge
more than what the improvements are worth. So what we are doing is proposing
that that’s what the County should resell these properties for, and what it’ll
probably entail is that there will be some investment that the County will be
making, because the price that we buyback a property for may not be as much or
probably be more than what we resell the leasehold estate for, because the price
that we're buying back for will probably exceed the value of the improvements.

The third change is in a lease fee. Whenever you have a leasehold estate, you
also charge a ground rent. And originally we proposed, to make it easier for
ourselves, we wanted to charge all the ground fees in advance, and have it part of
the financing package. We learned that that’s really not a good thing to do, what
we should do is have some kind of a periodic contact with the lessee, so one (1), we
can find out if they are having any financial problems, and two (2), to reinforce the
fact that this is a leasehold property and that they don’t own it outright, so we're
proposing that it be a quarterly fee, to be paid.

And the last change or the fourth big change would be in the calculation of
appreciation that a lessee would receive. When we originally made a proposal to
the Council, we were again following our experience with buyback, so we were
saying that the lessee should be entitled to one (1) percent of the purchase price for
the first 10 years, and then three (3) percent of the purchase price for all the years
after that. We used three (3) percent, because at the time the Council had been
dealing with a couple of projects and we were looking at the change in the Honolulu
Consumer Price Index, which is about three (3) percent the last 20 years. What this
percentage concept did, it would guarantee an amount in the future, but what is
wrong with that is nobody knows what is in the future, whether this be extravagant
or not enough. So, what we learned at the workshop and in utilizing all the
information we retrieved from the Mainland, who have done leaseholds, is they said
base it on the change in value of the improvements. So what we would repurchase a
property for is the original price that the lessee purchased it for, which is the
improvement value, and then we would also pay 50% of the difference between that
original value and the value when the County repurchases the property. The
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examples and the recommendations we saw from the Mainland were that lessees
acknowledged that they’re purchasing a property, and it needs to stay affordable,
and in those programs, they were usually only paying 25% of the change in value,
but we thought 50% would be a better figure.

Are there any specific questions about the proposed changes?
Chair Asing: Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, first of all I really appreciate the way your agency
and yourself Ken, look, you know continually research and see what’s being done in
other places, so that we don’t reinvent the wheel, or become confronted with
problems that we could have foreseen if we had checked it out. And then, my
question is in paragraph three (3), where the County will permit a leasehold estate
to be transferred to a qualified family member...you following or am I looking at the
wrong one (1)? You see where...item number three (3).

Mr. Rainforth: Provision number three (3), leasehold estate?
Ms. Yukimura: Yea, provision number three (3).

Mr. Rainforth: Okay.

Ms. Yukimura: Where it’s leasehold estate to be transferred to a qualified
family member?

Mr. Rainforth: Yes.
Ms. Yukimura: Okay, you were just saying you know it could be...

Mr. Rainforth: Did the qualification on...oh what we mean by the
qualified member was...

Ms. Yukimura: Right.

Mr. Rainforth: A person that does not own any other real estate suitable
for residential purposes. We're not trying to say that it has to be someone who is
income qualified or anything like that, or family size, it’s just...we want to be sure
the lease goes to somebody who needs a home.

Ms. Yukimura: It’s like a first time buyer. In this case it might be a first
time transferee, I mean someone who hasn’t owned property previously.

Mr. Rainforth: Someone who doesn’t own it at the time, and we want to
transfer the lease to them.
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Ms. Yukimura: Okay, okay. And you also said they could inherit it, or
they could pass it on to an heir upon death presumably.

Mr. Rainforth: Yes, someone could have their will saying that they
wanted to pass it on to a person.

Ms. Yukimura: And that doesn’t have any qualifications, that they just
have to be the designated heir, or are you saying they have to be qualified in any
other way?

Mr. Rainforth: I think it would still need to be a qualified person,
because the intent of this program is to have Kaua‘i residents who are occupying
the unit, and if the heir is not intending to occupy the unit, they wouldn’t be eligible
to be a lessee.

Ms. Yukimura: And also income qualified?
Mr. Rainforth: No, there’s no income qualification.

Ms. Yukimura: There is when they first buy...get this property, because
you have median income right, percentage of median income?

Mr. Rainforth: Not necessarily, no. We use our homebuyer priority list
as the source for reselling our units and there’s no income qualification per se to be
on that list, just to register with us and complete homeownership education. If
somebody wants to obtain a loan from us or from say rural development, they need
to be low income, but we haven’t as yet restricted the sales to a particular income
level. However, we've never had the opportunity to sell a property to somebody who
was over what we call affordable or 140% or 120% of the median income.

Ms. Yukimura:  Anyone was what? Over...

Mr. Rainforth: We have not sold it, any properties to people who are in
that income group, above affordable. '

Ms. Yukimura: Wﬁy would ydu not put aﬂ income requirement on?
Especially if you are selling these houses. You want them to be affordable in the
sense of people who need affordable housing.

Mr. Rainforth: Um, I understand what you’re saying and our policy is to
sell these buyback properties to people in the affordable income range, because
that’s where they came from, and the reality is that the people on our list are people
who attending classes, who are generally the lower income, because the way we
promote it, homeownership education was to advertise our loan programs.
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Ms. Yukimura: Yes, but you know the word could start getting out that
this is a good deal, I can get a good house, I only pay less than 30% of my income...I
am not clear why we wouldn’t have some restriction. I mean because we want to
address the needs first, right?

Mr. Rainforth: I agree.
Ms. Yukimura: So there’s no income requirement for the buyers?

Mr. Rainforth: There’s no policy that I know of that we’re required to
resell to somebody at a particular income range.

Ms. Yukimura: Now, how do...how does the land...the land trusts that
you've been using as a model don’t put in any income requirements either?

Mr. Rainforth: ‘Not really. The intent of the land trust is to keep
" properties affordable, but in reality the...well, you need to look at how properties
get into a land trust. And what we’re envisioning is that through developer
contributions satisfying affordable housing conditions, that we have properties go
into the land trust, and through the zoning ordinance or what have you, there are
specific income groups that have to be addressed in those sales. So for all those
properties that get added to a land trust, they have income restrictions, and what
we've used in our office as a policy, is to always try and keep those same income
levels. So if a property sold at between 80 and 120% of median income, we would
look at hopefully selling properties to people in that income group.

Ms. Yukimura: That...I have no problem with that, but what if we sell it
to somebody with 200% of median income? If you don’t have restrictions, won’t
people argue that even though they are in the 200% they are entitled to this...to get
property?

Mr. Furfaro: But Ken they won’t be on the list.

Mr. Rainforth: They could be on the list.

Mr. Furfaro: Okay, I guess that’s what I (inaudiblé).
Mr. Rainforth: But currently we don’t have any restriction to stop that.
Mr. Furfaro: I see.

Ms. Yukimura: Well I...but aren’t we...I mean the whole affordable
housing program is to provide housing to those target groups where we see the need
is the greatest. Why aren’t we restricting it to that until we have satisfied all of
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that need? Then I can see going to the next levels, but I don’t get it that...and I
don’t want to wait until a whole bunch of people come in and claim that they have a
right to these houses, to put in the restrictions, I just don’t understand because it
doesn’t see...without the,restriction it doesn’t.seem to correlate with our housing
program.

Mr. Rainforth: Okay, but again, there is no written policy or even...well
there’s no written policy.

Ms. Yukimura: But the houses that you're putting into this leasehold
program came out of affordable housing programs that were restricted were they
not? I mean isn’t that a policy in and of itself?

Mr. Rainforth: That’s correct.

Ms. Yukimura: So if we were to sell it to someone...say in a 200 income
bracket, I mean one (1) could almost argue you are violating the policy, that those
resources, those houses and lots that were created with a lot of the taxpayer subsidy
were not intended for that group. At least not until we address that need, and then
maybe we could go on, but or we go higher, if we so deem that to be important
public policy.

Mr. Rainforth: Okay.

Ms. Yukimura: I mean so...my question is, are you asking us for a policy
that you say you cannot move without? Or can you just have a further amendment
that would tie this to some income levels?

Mr. Rainforth: We could have a further amendment to deal with income
levels, and I think it’s a very good idea to have one (1), but currently it’s not here.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, okay, that was my first question, because I wanted to
understand what you’re proposing. And I would ask that you kind of check with the
other experienced land trust and others who have...from which you are drawing
this to see how they work it. I can’t imagine that they just have it open to the whole
market, because it just seems contradictory to their basic mission.

Mr. Rainforth: Well the actual...the...our favorite model that we were
using to draft our leasehold document was restricting their program to low income,
or 80% below period. We thought that wasn’t a good idea, so we didn’t include any
of those kind of restrictions, but in our policy this document, we...I believe we
should have restrictions.




